



3rd Event of 2019 Lithuanian Mini Rally Championship ,,ŠIAULIAI 2019"

SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS

24/25-08-2019

Šiauliai

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION	3
II. ORGANIZATION	3
III. PROGRAM	4
IV. PARTICIPANTS, ENTRIES, CLASSIFICATIONS	5
V. ADVERTISING AND VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS	6
VI. INSURANCE	6
VII. TIRES	7
VIII. FUEL	7
IX. RECONNAISSANCE	7
X. ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKING	7
XI. SCRUTINEERING, SEALING AND MARKING	7
XII. OTHER PROCEDURES	8
XIII. IDENTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIALS	9
XIV. PRIZES, CUPS	9
XV. PENALTIES	10
XVI. PROTESTS, APPEALS	10
XVII. USEFUL INFORMATION	10

I. INTRODUCTION

1.1 DEFINITION. 3rd event of 2019 Lithuanian Mini Rally Championship (abr. LMRC) "Šiauliai 2019" will be organized by Sports Club "Rally 4 fun". It is classsified "C" league rally. The rally will be run in compliance with:

- FIA International Sporting Code (abr. FIA Code);
- Lithuanian Automobile Sorts Code (abr. LASC);
- Lithuanian Automobile Sports Competition's Organization and Execution Rules;
- Lithuanian Rally Rules 2019 (abr. "T-2019");
- Regulations of Lithuanian Mini Rally Championship 2019;
- 2019 Lithuanian national technical regulations for cars of "SGC", "SG" and "OC" groups;
- The present Supplementary regulations.

The modifications, corrections and changes of these Supplementary regulations will be announced only in numbered and dated Bulletins (issued by the Organizer or Stewards). Supplementary regulations are announced by Lithuanian and English languages. In case of discrepancy will be guided Lithuanian language announced Supplementary regulations.

Lithuanian Rally Rules 2019, Regulations of Lithuanian Mini Rally Championship and 2019 Lithuanian national technical regulations for cars of "SGC", "SG" and "OC" groups are published www.lasf.lt.

1.2 TRACK INFORMATION

Total distance of the rally course (preliminary):	175,79 km
Number of stages:	11
Number of stages to be raced twice:	5
Total distance of special stages (preliminary):	22,94 km
Number of legs:	1
Number of sections:	2
Surface:	asphalt 100%

Precise total distance, detailed route and itinerary will be specified in the Road Book.

II. ORGANIZATION

2.1 COMPETITION STATUS

The rally has been entered into the 2019 LASF sports calendar as the third event of 2019 Lithuanian Mini Rally Championship. Registration No.VOS 2019/25. Date of approval 12-04-2019.

2.2 ADDRESS AND CONTACT INFORMATION OF THE ORGANIZER:

The name: Sports club ,,Rally 4 fun"

Adress: Šiubaičiai 9, Kairiai subdistr., Šiauliai distr., Lithuania.

Contacts: tel.: +370 640 38014; +370 612 50791, e - mail: ralis@inbox.lt

The transferor of Organizer rights:

Lithuanian Automobile Sports Federation Adress: Savanorių pr. 56, Kaunas, Lithuania

Tel./fax.: +370 37 350006, phone.: +370 615 46710, e - mail: lasf@lasf.lt

2.3 ORGANIZING COMMITTEE

Chairman: Eugenijus Andrulis – Sports club "Rally 4 fun" president.

Members: Vytautas Slabys – Head of Bubiai municipality

Audrius Butkevičius – Company "RDsigns" director.

Redas Alubickis – Company "Joras" director. Aurelijus Margis – Company "Sovli"sales manager

Jūratė Briaukuvienė – Administrator of supermarket "Bruklinas". Jolita Paulauskienė – Head of driver training of Šiauliai DRMC

2.4 OFFICIALS OF THE RALLY

Steward	Rimantas Volungevičius	phone: +370 610 40550
Clerk of the Course	Edvinas Vašteris	phone: +370 612 50791
Chief Secretary	Rasa Jakienė	phone: +370 686 85146
Chief Scrutineer	Egidijus Janavičius	phone: +370 685 01303
Competitors' relations officer	Arturas Gailius	phone: +370 655 72900
Course and safety chief officer	Arūnas Lapinskas	phone: +370 612 07151
Chief timekeeper	Gintautas Firantas	phone: +370 686 86161
Rally director	Tomas Laugalis	phone: +370 676 16082

2.5 RALLY HEADQUARTERS AND OFFICIAL NOTICE BOARD

Place: Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai

Date: 24-08-2019 (Saturday) Time: from 17:30 till 20:00 25-08-2019 (Sunday) Time: from 7:30 till 20:30

III. PROGRAM

3.1 SCHEDULE BEFORE THE RALLY WEEK

Action	Date	Time	Location
Supplementary Regulations publication	26-07-2019 Friday	15:00	www.rally4fun.lt www.lasf.lt
Personal entries open	26-07-2019 Friday	15:00	www.rally4fun.lt
Start of reservation of the schedule time for administrative checks and scrutineering	26-07-2019 Friday	15:00	online entry form
Team entries open	26-07-2019 Friday	15:00	Send by e-mail ralis@inbox.lt
Publication of the list of participants (regularly updating)	01-08-2019 Thursday	15:00	www.rally4fun.lt
Personal entries close	12-08-2019 Monday	17:00	
Closing of reservation of the schedule time for administrative checks and scrutineering	12-08-2019 Monday	17:00	www.rally4fun.lt online entry form
Entries with increased starting fee close	16-08-2019 Friday	17:00	

3.2 RALLY WEEK SCHEDULE

Action	Time	Location	
19 -	- 08 – 2019 (Monda	ay)	
Preliminary start order publication	15:00	www.rally4fun.lt	
24 –	- 08 –2019 (Saturd	ay)	
Administrative checking, hand – out of the	17:30 – 19:00	Communication Description	
Road books and stickers	17.30 - 17.00	Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės	
Scrutineering	17:45 – 20:00	str. 6, Šiauliai, GPS: 55.9137, 23.3049	

25 – 08 –2019 (Sunday)			
Administrative checking, hand – out of the Road books and stickers	7:15 – 8:15	Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės	
Scrutineering	7:30 – 9:00	str. 6, Šiauliai, GPS: 55.9137, 23.3049	
Team entries close	9:00		
The first Steward's meeting	9:20	Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai, Rally HQ	
Start order publication	9:50	Tramones sur. 0, Staumar, Rany 11Q	
Participant's briefing	10:00		
Rally opening ceremony	10:15	¥	
Start of the Rally	10:30	Square beside "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai	
Regroup, Service park	13:00 – 16:30	Transcres sur o, staunar	
Finish of the Rally	17:00 – 19:00		
Scrutineering following rally finish	Just after finish	Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai	
Publication of provisional results	19:30	Company "Šiaulių Dagris",	
Publication of finaly results	20:15	Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai, Rally HQ	
Awarding ceremony	20:30	Square beside "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai	

IV. PARTICIPANTS, ENTRIES, CLASSIFICATIONS

4.1 ENTRIES CLOSE: 12-08-2019 (Monday) Time: 17:00 Entries (with the increased starting fee) close: 16-08-2019 (Friday) Time: 17:00

Online entry form: www.rally4fun.lt

- **4.2 PARTICIPANTS.** All persons (1st and 2nd drivers) can participate in the rally, which submitted entry form, having paid a set entry fee, and meet with the requirements of 2019 LMRC Regulations parts 3.1 3.5. Participate in LMRC classifications can only crews, which submitted LASF "Championship entry form".
- **4.3 ENTRIES SUBMITTION PROCEDURES.** The online entry form, published <u>www.rally4fun.lt</u> must be correctly and fully filled till the time limits specified in the provisions of clause 4.1. Entry form is considered accepted after receipt of the Organizer's confirmation and having paid entry fee. Data about the co-driver may be submitted during administrative checking.
- **4.3.1** Correctly and fully filled and **signed** original entry form is presented during administrative checking. By signing the entry form participant agrees that information, provided in the entry form is true and it can be published.
- 4.3.2 The crews, who wish for more convenient administrative and technical checking times, must indicate it in online form till 12-08-2019 (Monday) 17:00.
 - 4.3.3 Team entry forms must be submitted till 25-08-2019 (Sunday), 9:00 hrs.

4.4 NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS AND CLASSIFICATIONS

- **4.4.1 Maximum number of participants 70 crews.** The Organizer reserves the right to change the maximum number of participants, and inform about it in the separate bulletin.
 - **4.4.2** Vehicles are divided to "SGC" and "OPEN" classifications.
 - 4.4.3 Cars (groups, classes) involved in SGC classifications:
 - SGC-1 up to 1600 cm³ (two drive wheels);
 - SGC- 2 up to 2000 cm³ (two drive wheels);

SGC- 3 from 2000 cm³ to 3000 cm³ (two or four drive wheels);

SGC- 4 over 3000 cm³ (two or four drive wheels);

SGC- I series cars manufactured till 1991 (inclusive). However, the models launched in 1991 are not recognized as historic cars.

4.4.4 Cars (groups, classes) involved in OPEN classifications:

Class "V": 1st drivers born in 1968 and older;

Class "IS": Modified cars manufactured before 1991 (inclusive), meeting the technical requirements of OC or SGC-I groups;

Class "OC": Cars meeting the technical requirements of SGC or OC groups.

4.5 ENTRY FEES.

4.5.1 Entry fee for all classifications participants is 120 EUR, having paid till 12-08-2019 17:00 hrs. Subsequently, the fee will be increased till 180 EUR. LMRC team entry fee is 25 EUR.

4.5.2 The entry fee must be paid as follows:

Beneficiary Asociacija Sporto klubas "Rally 4 fun"

Code 303046600

Bank AB Šiaulių bankas SWIFT/BIC <u>CBSBLT26</u>

Account (IBAN) LT577180000005700337

Payment for: Rally "Šiauliai 2019" entry fee for: (write the name of the team or/and

names of the participant(s)).

4.6 REFUNDING OF ENTRY FEE. Entry fee will be refunded if:

- Rally does not happen due to organizer's fault - 100%;

- For participants whose entry forms are not accepted 100%;
- Rally does not happen due to Force Majeure circumstances 50%;
- The participant cannot participate due to justified circumstances recognized by the Federation 50%.

V. ADVERTISING AND VEHICLE IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS

5.1 Positioning of driver's names, surnames, competition numbers and advertising material provided by LASF or the Organizer and presented in Appendix 3 of these Supplementary regulations is **mandatory**. **5.2 Losing or removal of competition numbers, rally and advertising stickers.** During the event, if are lost in 5.1 clause mentioned stickers, the crew must inform competitors relations officer till the nearest service park or rally finish. Failure to do it, also intentionally removing of mentioned stickers during the event, the crew will be expelled from the rally.

VI. INSURANCE

- **6.1** Every car, participating in the rally "Šiauliai 2019" must hold User/driver civil liability insurance ("the green card"), valid in Lithuanian Republic.
- **6.2** The Organizer guaranties civil liability insurance towards third parties for the crews in special stages from the start to the finish, either his retirement or expulsion from rally. Participants are not third parties to each other.
- **6.3** Rally insurance policy is not valid for the service cars, even if they are marked with special stickers issued by the Organizer. Insurance also does not apply for the time of passages between special stages, where participants must comply with the Lituanian Road code and take civil liability for their actions.
- **6.4** The crew must notify the Organizer about damage to third-party assets made in special stages no later than finish of the rally. In case of failure to notify, or overdue notification, for the crew will be imposed 100 EUR cash penalty.
- **6.5** The Organizer is not responsible for any consequences of the participant's behavior (damage) that have occurred without complying with the Rally Rules, LMRC Regulations, these Supplementary Regulations or the legislation of the Republic of Lithuania.
- **6.6** All 1st and 2nd drivers must take out an accident insurance. The supporting documents must be provided at the request of the administrative checking. By signing the Entry form, the participants or

entrants waive any right to compensation for incidents that have occurred. Refusal is directed to FIA, LASF and Organizer, official persons and other applicants and / or drivers.

1st and 2nd drivers from outside the EU must have a valid travel insurance with the risk of leisure sports.

VII. TIRES

- **7.1** Allowed to use only certified tires for driving on public roads during the summer season, which are in conformity with Lithuanian Road traffic law, and must have EU-compliant markings (label "E" homologation with the country code, such as: E4, E2, etc.). Allowed to use the retreaded tires.
- **7.2** Prohibited use of racing tires without tread or with him, and retreaded with sports-type tread. Prohibited use of tires with tag "For competition use only" and so on.
- **7.3** Any modification of the tire's tread either mechanically or chemically is prohibited.

VIII. FUEL

- **8.1** Refueling is allowed only in refueling zones, specified in the Road book, or commercial petrol stations, without departing from the rally route.
- **8.2** Only crew members and their supporting personnel are responsible for compliance with fire safety regulations during refueling. It is mandatory to use a liquid-proof mat.

IX. RECONNAISSANCE

- **9.1 Reconnaissance is prohibited by the motor vehicles.** The violators, who will registered by police officers or the Organizer official persons, may be expelled from the rally by the Stewards decision, and LASF Rally Committee will apply the penalties provided in 12 section of LASC.
- **9.2** Walking following SS tracks on foot and travelling on non-motorized vehicles is not considered a reconnaissance, but forbidden to do it after passage of the safety car (from the track closing moment).

X. ADMINISTRATIVE CHECKING

10.1. DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED:

Competitor's licenses for 1st and 2nd drivers;

Driving licenses for 1st and 2nd drivers (except minors, section 3.2 of the 2019 LMRC Regulations); ASN edition (if applicable);

Addition of all information to the entry form;

Valid travel insurance for non-EU drivers;

For minors - a written consent of a parent or guardian (Form 3) and a copy of a personal document.

10.2 During the race days at the Rally HQ will be opportunity to obtain one-time LASF "M" category "Competitor's license", upon submission the medical certificate and an accident insurance policy, valid during motorsports competition.

10.3 SCHEDULE:

24-08-2019 (Saturday) from 17:30 till 19:00 25-08-2019 (Sunday) from 7:15 till 8:15

Exact arrival schedule to the administrative and technical checkings will be announced along with preliminary start list 19-08-2019 (Monday) www.rally4fun.lt

XI. SCRUTINEERING, SEALING AND MARKING

11.1 DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED:

- User/driver civil liability insurance("the green card"), valid in Lithuania Republic.
- vehicle registration certificate;
- a document certifying the performance of the mandatory roadworthiness test;
- Passport of a sports car issued by LASF or other ASN (for SG group cars, for frame group OC and self-produced cars, for SGC group cars, if equipped with safety cage).

11.2 SCHEDULE:

24-08-2019 (Saturday) from 17:45 till 20:00

25-08-2019 (Sunday) from 7:30 till 9:00

11.3 Competition numbers and rally mandatory advertising stickers, issued during Administrative checking the crews must affix on their cars before Scrutineering. Pre-picking of start numbers and rally stickers is possible, subject to prior arrangement with the Organizer.

11.4 Inspection of driver's helmets and safety equipment will be performed during pre-start scrutineering, also may be performed repeatedly by Official's marked identifying signs during all rally time.

XII. OTHER PROCEDURES

12.1. RALLY START PROCEDURE:

Start of the rally will take place on 25-08-2019 (Sunday) at 10:30 in the square next to "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai. All participants' cars must be parked in the pre-start area till 9:30. From pre-start zone cars rides through the rally podium TC 0 and continue by the road book to TC1.

12.2. FINISH PROCEDURE:

Rally finish is TC 11A.

Scrutineering after the finish of the rally cars will be carried out in "Šiaulių Dagris" cars service.

The cars from the closed park can be picked up only with Steward's permission. If the race will be not deviate from the planned schedule, Park Ferme will be opened at 20:15.

12.3. EARLY CHECK - IN:

Early check-in without penalty is allowed at TC 11A (Entry to the finish PF).

12.4. START PROCEDURE IN SPECIAL STAGES:

The start procedure in special stages will be as follows:

- At the start the crew must to stop following the instructions of the marshals;
- When the start marshal confirms that the car is in the correct start position 40 cm before the equipment controlled start line, the car must not move till the start moment, and the crew must follow the time and lights on the monitor.
- 30 seconds before the start, the marshal returns the time card to the 2nd driver;
- The last five seconds are marked with five red and green lights. The first red light switch on 55 seconds till the start, the second 56 seconds, and so on. Exactly at the moment of equal minute, the red lights are extinguished and the green light switch on. In case when the start is incorrect, the message "FALSE" automatically lights up on the monitor. False start will be penalized by "T-2019" clause 37.6.
- The start line marshal makes the final decision for the false start and notes it in the protocol.
- In case of failure of the startup system, the start procedure will be carried out in accordance with "T-2019" clause 37.3 requirements.

12.5. FINISH PROCEDURE IN SPECIAL STAGES:

- 12.5.1 Finish procedure in SS 1/2, SS 3, SS 6/10 time is fixed when the car crosses the finish line. The car must stop on the finish line, i.e. it must be between the front and rear axles of the car. Failure to do it correctly, will be given 10 seconds time penalty.
- **12.5.2** The finish procedure in SS 4/5, SS7/11, SS 8/9 the finish line is crossing without stopping. Stopping from the warning finish sign till the "STOP" sign is strictly prohibited.

12.6. TIME CARDS:

SECTION/ TC	ISSUING	COLLECTING
Section 1/ TC 0	X	
Section 1/ TC 5A		X
Section 2/ TC 5A	X	
Section 2/ TC 11A		X

12.7 Retired from the rally crews must inform the Clerk of the Course by ph. +370 612 50791 or Relations competitor's officer by ph. +370 655 72900 about the reasons, place and time of their retirement. Retired crew must also return the time card at the closest control point or to the Rally HQ.

12.8. OFFICIAL RALLY TIME: Eastern European Summer Time (CET +2, UTC + 3).

12.9. REGROUPING. During the rally will be one regrouping, without start position's changing (sports channel contraction). The crews are allowed to stay in the regrouping park, but any car repair works are prohibited and are apply all rules of "Park Ferme". ("T-2019" art. 42.1-42.6). New start time – TC 5C. **12.10. RED FLAG.** It can be displayed only by the radio post marshal with identification marks. Upon

12.10. RED FLAG. It can be displayed only by the radio post marshal with identification marks. Upon seeing the red flag displayed, the crew must immediately reduce the speed and drive at a reduced speed to the finish of SS and follow the instructions of the marshals and official persons. In case of noncompliance with this rule, the Steward will impose fines pursuant to clause 12 of the LASC. For the crews, for which has been shown the red flag, will be appointed appropriate results according "T- 2019" 39 clause.

12.11. OTHER REQUIREMENTS.

- **12.11.1** If the car, holding a LASF sports car certificate retired from rally after the crash, the crew or team representatives must inform Chief Scrutineer, and by his request deliver the car for technical inspection. ("T-2019", 27.3 clause).
- 12.11.2 All cars must have a red retro-reflecting triangle which, if the car SS stops due to an accident or technical failure, must be placed in a clearly visible place on the same side of the road, not less than 50 meters from the car, for that to warn other drivers.
- 12.11.3 In special stages participants are required to wear a helmets, to be fastened seat belts and drive with switched on headlights or the respective LED lights. In the special stages driving in opposite direction is strictly prohibited. Failure to comply with this rule the crews will be expelled from rally. 12.12 SERVICE. Opening: 7:00, Closing: 20:30, Surface asphalt.

Place: Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai

Date: 25-08-2019 (Sunday)

- **12.12.1** Duration of service during rally 60 min. Tire replacement allowed, refueling allowed. Compulsory "T-2019" articles 48-50 requirements.
- 12.12.2 For the each crew only one servicing car without trailer is allowed into the Service Park. Special sticker issued by the Organizer must be stick on the service car windscreen. Failure to meet this requirement will be fined. Please leave your trailers in the Organizer's specified location.
- **12.12.3** Washing of components and machineries, which are used technical oils (engines, gear boxes and similar) *is prohibited in Service Park*. In the place of servicing the waterproof fabric (minimum 4x4 m) must be laid under the rally car. Using pumps for refueling, the ends of the tube must be equiped with safety taps or valves.

XIII. IDENTIFICATION OF THE OFFICIALS

13.1 Identification of the Officials (identification colors of the vests)

Position: Color of the vest:

Competitors' relations officer:

Stage commanders:

Post's chief marshals:

Marshals:

Marshals of radio points

Safety marshals:

Scrutineers:

red with identification note
blue with identification note
yellow with identification note
yellow with blue radio point's sign
orrange with identification note
black with identification note

XIV. PRIZES, CUPS

- **14.1** 1st 3rd place winners in LMRC classifications "*Class Personal 1st drivers"*, "*Class personal 2nd drivers"* will be awarded the cups of the Organizer, also the prizes, if they will established.
- **14.2** Teams, 1st 3rd place winners of "*LMRC team classification*" will be awarded the Organizer's cups.
- **14.3** LMRC 1st stage participants, born in 1998 and later ("Junior" classification), 1st 3rd place winners of "Class 1st Drivers", will be awarded the Organizer's cups, also the prizes, if they will established.
- **14.4** The award ceremony will take place on 25-08-2019 (Sunday), 20:30 hrs, on the scene beside "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai. The crews prize winners who did not attend the awarding ceremony will be penalized by 15 EUR fine and will lose their right to the prizes.

XV. PENALTIES

15.1 Fines are mentioned in Appendix No. 4 "TABLE OF PENALTIES".

XVI. PROTESTS, APPEALS

16.1 Scrutineering after rally finish:

Place: Company "Šiaulių Dagris", Pramonės str. 6, Šiauliai

Date: 25-08-2019 (Sunday) Time: just after finish

Participants, whose cars will be selected for the technical inspection after the finish of the rally will be required to provide the necessary equipment, including all sealed spare parts, and mechanics at the site of the technical inspection.

- **16.2** All protests must be submitted according the requirements of the LASC 13 section.
 - **16.2.1** All protests must be filed together with 50 EUR deposit.
- 16.2.2 In case the protester requires dismantling of parts of the vehicle machineries, the person lodging such a protest must pay the additional deposit as specified in 2019 LMRC Regulations art.10.7.

 16.3 The appeal must be filed in accordance with requirements of LASC 15 section, having paid the fee set by LASF Council.

XVII. USEFUL INFORMATION

- 17.1. Foreign crews inquiring on the visa issues may contact to the Organizer by e-mail: ralis@inbox.lt
- 17.2 Participants may stay overnight in places specified in Rally guide.
- 17.3 Official Rally websites: www.rally4fun.lt, www.lasf.lt

THE ELECTION OF THE PARTY OF TH	APPENDIXES:	1. Itinerary card
	APPENDIXES:	l Itinerary car

- 2. Competitors' relations officer and his job plan.
- 3. Positioning Order of Start Numbers and Advertising Texts.
- 4. Table of penalties.

M	AN	JD.	4 T ()R'	YF	'ORMS:	1. Competitor's Entry Form (online www	v.rallv4fun.lt)

Team Entry Form.
 Parental consent.

4. Information on accounts

Approved:	Prepared and confirmed:
Chairman of LASF Rally Committee Mr. Tomas Žemaitis	Organizer: Sport Club "Rally 4 fun" President Mr. E. Andrulis
	Place of the stamp
LASF General Secretary Mr. Tadas Vasiliauskas	
Place of the stamp	